
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

August 17, 2023 
 

James R. McNeil, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Laura J. Genovich, City Attorney 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, August 17, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES – Regular Meeting – August 3, 2023 
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. Approval – Resolution 23-17 – Local Support Without Financial Commitment - Recreation. 

Explanation: Recreation Director Kim Peterson is seeking a grant from the MI Community Center for upgrades to the 
Catherine Bonifas Civic Center, to include construction of eight outdoor pickleball courts. 
 

2. Approval – Stephenson Avenue Material Testing Services Bid – Public Works. 
Explanation:  Administration is seeking City Council approval to award the Stephenson Avenue Material Testing 
Services Bid to Coleman Engineering Company, Escanaba, MI for an estimated cost of $5,700. The scope of the 
testing will include Earthwork and Bituminous Aggregate Base, Field and Laboratory of Hot Mix Asphalt, and HMA 
Mixture Testing. 
 

3. Approval – Stephenson Avenue Project MDOT Letting – Public Works/Engineering.    
Explanation: Two bids were received for the Paving of Stephenson Avenue Project. Administration is seeking City 
Council approval to award Payne and Dolan, of Escanaba, MI in the amount of $695,065. 
 

4. Approval – Street Sweeper Bid – Public Works. 
Explanation: Public Works received (5) bids for a new 2023 Street Sweeper. Administration is seeking City Council 
approval for a 2023 Freightliner Chassis Bucher 65VT Street Sweeper from MTech, of Cleveland, OH in the amount of 
$325,000. This is a budgeted item. 
 

5. Approval – Contract for Cleaning at EPSD – Public Safety. 
Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval to enter into a contract with InfiniClean cleaning 
services for cleaning EPSD. 
 

APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       



Agenda – August 17, 2023 
 
ADJOURNMENT          
 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 
James R. McNeil 
City Manager 

 



 
 
 

 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 
Thursday, August 3, 2023 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Tyler DuBord, Todd Flath, and 

Karen Moore 
 
Absent: Ronald J. Beauchamp 
 
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
DuBord moved,  Moore seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to excuse Council 
member Beauchamp’s absence from the meeting. 
 
Moore moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from July 20, 2023, as submitted. 
 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 
 

 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1 Second Reading, Public Hearing and Adoption of Ordinance No. 1282, An 
Ordinance to Amend Marihuana Establishment Distancing Regulations within the 
Zoning Ordinance – Planning & Zoning. 
 

Administration requested the City Council to consider approval and adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1282, An Ordinance to Amend Marihuana Establishment Distancing 
Regulations within the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 
  
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 



City Council Minutes  
August 3, 2023 – cont. 
 

2 
 

PH-1 “By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Flath; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1282, An Ordinance to Amend Marihuana 
Establishment Distancing Regulations within the Zoning Ordinance, given its public 
hearing at this meeting, be and is hereby adopted and that it be published in 
accordance with the requirements of the City Charter." 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1282 adopted by title: 
 

"AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND MARIHUANA ESTABLISHMENT DISTANCING 
REGULATIONS WITHIN THE ZONING ORDINANCE" 

 
Full text in Ordinance Record “M”. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 

 
PH-2 Second Reading, Public Hearing and Adoption of Ordinance No. 1283, An 
Ordinance to Amend Setback-Related Language within the Zoning Ordinance - 
Planning & Zoning. 
 

Administration requested the City Council to consider approval and adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1283, An Ordinance to Amend Setback-Related Language within the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 
  
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
PH-2 “By Council Member Flath, seconded by Council Member DuBord; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1283, An Ordinance to Amend Setback-Related 
Language within the Zoning Ordinance, given its public hearing at this meeting, be 
and is hereby adopted and that it be published in accordance with the requirements 
of the City Charter." 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1283 adopted by title: 
 

" AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SETBACK-RELATED LANGUAGE WITHIN THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE" 

 
Full text in Ordinance Record “M”. 



City Council Minutes  
August 3, 2023 – cont. 
 

3 
 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, DuBord, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 

 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Approval – Concrete Pile Crushing Bid – Public Works. 
 

The City of Escanaba received one (1) bid for the concrete pile crushing. 
Administration sought City Council approval to accept the bid from Havelka 
Construction of Wallace, MI, to have the entire pile of 18,000 tons crushed in the 
amount of $99,000. 
 
NB-1 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to accept the bid from Havelka 
Construction of Wallace, MI, to have the entire pile of 18,000 tons crushed in the 
amount of $99,000. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-2 Approval – Total Patcher – Public Works. 
 

Public Works sought City Council approval to purchase a used 2012 Total Patcher 
from Equipment Marketing Company in the amount of $39,900. This was not a 
budgeted item. 
 
NB-2 DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to approve to purchase a used 2012 Total 
Patcher from Equipment Marketing Company in the amount of $39,900. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 



City Council Minutes  
August 3, 2023 – cont. 
 

4 
 

MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-3 Approval – V-Box Spreader Salter Insert – Public Works.  
 

Public Works received (2) bids for a Salter Insert designed to fit in our current 2013 
Tandem Axle dump truck. Public Works sought City Council approval to accept the 
bid from Casper's Truck Equipment of Appleton, WI, in the amount of $72,906. This 
was a budgeted item. 
 
NB-3 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve to accept the bid from Casper's 
Truck Equipment of Appleton, WI, in the amount of $72,906. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-4 Approval – Epoxy Flooring Bid – Public Works.  
 

Public Works received (2) bids for doing epoxy flooring in the Public Works office and 
an alternate bid for the hallway. Public Works sought City Council approval to have 
Pemble Concrete of Marquette, MI,  epoxy the office ($7,780) and hallway areas 
($1,990), for a total of $9,770. This was a budgeted item. 
 
NB-4 Moore moved, DuBord seconded, to approve to have Pemble Concrete of 
Marquette, MI, epoxy the office ($7,780) and hallway areas ($1,990), for a total of 
$9,770. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-5 Approval – 2023 Pickup Truck – Public Works. 
 

Public Works sought City Council approval to purchase a 2023 6.4L V8Hemi Ram 
Tradesman Regular Cab 4x4 from Lanfontaine CDJR-Lansing for $54,207.90. It 
included heavy duty snow plow prep with a plow included in the price. This truck would 
be used for the Recreation Department. This was not a budgeted item. 



City Council Minutes  
August 3, 2023 – cont. 
 

5 
 

NB-5 Moore moved, DuBord seconded, to approve to purchase a 2023 6.4L V8Hemi 
Ram Tradesman Regular Cab 4x4 from Lanfontaine CDJR-Lansing for $54,207.90.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-6 Approval – Resolution 23-16 – Authorized Signatory – Manager. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval of a resolution authorizing the City 
Manager to sign a contract with MDOT. This contract is for the award of a $375,000 
Small Urban Grant, and is to be used for paving on Stephenson Avenue. 
 
NB-6 “By Council Member Flath, seconded by Council Member DuBord: 
 

RESOLUTION 23-16 
 

Be it resolved that 
 

CONTRACT No. 23-5304, Control Section STUL 21000, Job Number 208209CON 
 

by and between the 
 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

and the 
 

CITY OF ESCANABA 
 

is hereby accepted. 
 

The following Official(s) is/are authorized to sign the said contract: 
 

James McNeil, City Manager 
 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, DuBord, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Beauchamp 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 

 



City Council Minutes  
August 3, 2023 – cont. 
 

6 
 

APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES – None 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 

 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• Congratulations Escanaba 9–11-year-old Softball team State Champions! 

• UP State Fair coming August 14-20th! 

• The council thanked everyone involved with Marina Fest. They had a great turnout! 

• RRN Block Party was very successful with over 1,700 people attending! 

• Northern Lights Musical festival was a huge success! Thank you to everyone who 
was involved. 

 

Hearing no further public comment, Flath moved, DuBord seconded, the Council 
adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ____________________ 
City Clerk              Mark Ammel, Mayor 





RESOLUTION 23-17 
 

LOCAL SUPPORT WITHOUT FINANCIAL COMMITMENT 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Escanaba supports the Catherine Bonifas Civic Center/Recreation 
Department submission of an application titled, “Catherine Bonifas Civic Center Upgrade and 
Construction of Eight Pickleball Courts” to the MI Community Center Grant Program for 
flooring/lighting/window/heating/cooling upgrades (geo thermal) and construction of eight 
pickleball courts at the Catherine Bonifas Civic Center, 225 North 21st Street, Escanaba, MI  49829; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the location of the proposed project is within the jurisdiction of the City of Escanaba; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed project, if completed, will be a benefit to the community; and  
 
WHEREAS, with this Resolution of support, it is acknowledged that the City of Escanaba is not 
committing to any obligation; financial or otherwise. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Escanaba and the Escanaba City Council 
hereby supports submission of a MI Community Center Grant Application for the Catherine 
Bonifas Civic Center. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
AYES: 
NAYES: 
ABSENT: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
I the undersigned, being duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Escanaba, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
Escanaba City Council and the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a regular City 
Council Meeting held on Thursday, August 17, 2023, and that said meeting was conducted and 
public notice was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meeting Act, Act 267, 
Public Acts of Michigan, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been 
made available as required by said Act. 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Phil DeMay 
City Clerk 

















���������	
��
������������

��������������� 

��!"#$%&���'��(�)�*�+��,-�.��/�/�����-,-�.���0

�/���1-��2�3���1-4�&,�3&5����)�.,��6)�-�.�&.7��&��1�.��1&�8-.9,��.�!���3�.,�.����.6��2��1�:�3����.6��������3
���.6��-.��3��)-�;��2�<,)&.&=&>�?�5�&�@�6.�;/��#3-,�-,�&�A�)&5��9�.);����(�)�/�BB����0�@=�������0�<&�BBC.�&77-�-�.���
�3��&=����1-.-161����D6&5-2-)&�-�.���D6-��1�.��2�����-1��)�.��&)���,��3-,����(�)��-.)567�,�,6=)5&,,-2-)&�-�.,��2�@=
&.7�<&/�C2��3����-1��)�.��&)����-,�.������D6&5-2-�7�-.��3�,��,6=)5&,,-2-)&�-�.,�-��16,��6,�����D6&5-2-�7�,6=)�.��&)���,/
#3�,��,6=)�.��&)���,�16,��=��7�,-9.&��7���-������&E&�7��2��3��)�.��&)������3��)�.2-�1�7�5�E�=-77��/

F���G
H��	�IJK

@�;,�&5�L&55,�#!@

MG�NJH�O�PKF���G
H��QRK

SJT���O�PKUJ����T�R
�JK F�����J�K�696,����>�����

���������@$ 'A<#C$V�?�#<

����W��

F���G
H��RJ�HG�X����K

���

?�5�&�@�6.�;

�����Y�����:F
�Z�I�JGK

[J���G�QR\Z
IJ 	��
���� MJGHJ���]��̂���I
�J

U�������[J���G�

S
�_ MJGHJ���]��U�̀ ����

� a�>��0>:�0/�� �W:/��b ���/��bY<!#Y�Y�<.9-.���c,�<,�-1&��

� aW:0>�W0/�� ���/��b 0:/��b��:���Y�'&;.��d�?�5&.�C.)/

� a�>���>���/�� ���/��b �0/��b��0�0�Y�$=��,�&��C.)/

'&9������2��



���������	
��
������������

��������������� 

��!"#$%&���'��(�)�*�+��,-�.��/�/�����-,-�.���0

1����23�45 67��89����

:�59�;5�43�<����

=��5�>��?�:�59�:;

1����23�4567��89���� 67��89����8��@5��?�8��A59�53

BCD�6�E��553F��6���9
�5 BGD�H�53��
3�:�4I

1����23�45J�
����K�
���1����

BLD�2
K�5�M�;�
��:�4I

@54�����:;?;5�43N� O��&P�%��Q

��R���/��������0 ��SRT��/�����U�V�������

W!X 

��SRT��/����SRT��/����� ��R���/��

 �Y-Z-[&�-�.R� &\�]��SRT��/��

��SRT��/��

��/��������� ��/�����SR���/�����0���S

_̂P

���R���/����/����� ���R���/��

\̀)&�&�-�.R�̀&��a

���R���/��

0�/��������0 ��/��������/�����0����

_̂P

�R���/����/����� 0R���/��

!bYc�&P��X.P��)b��-.cR�#_���dd

�R���/��

���/��������� ���/�������/����������

&̀

SR���/���0�/����� SR���/��

�̀�,-�.�̂�.���ZR�d.Z���'����)�-�.R
e&Y�-)�f���

�R���/��

��/S�������0 ��/������SR���/����������

!_P

�0SR���/����/����� ���RT��/��

�cc��c&���g&,�R���-.)a

�T�RS��/��

S��/��������� �R���/�������/���������0

&̀

��RS��/�����/����� ��R���/��

f��!��b)�b���̂����R��P(R�̂&,���

��R���/��

�/��������0 S/�������RS0�/���0�����0

!_P

�TR��0/���/0���� ��R�00/��

" ��!b�h&)�R���i

S�RT��/��

'&c������h��



���������	
��
������������

��������������� 

��!"#$%&���'��(�)�*�+��,-�.��/�/�����-,-�.���0

1����23�45 67��89����

:�59�;5�43�<����

=��5�>��?�:�59�:;

1����23�4567��89���� 67��89����8��@5��?�8��A59�53

BCD�6�E��553F��6���9
�5 BGD�H�53��
3�:�4I

1����23�45J�
����K�
���1����

BLD�2
K�5�M�;�
��:�4I

@54�����:;?;5�43N� O��&P�%��Q

�R�/��������� ���/������0�/���0����R�

#�.

0RS�0�/����0/����� ��S���/��

" �������&)T

0�S���/��

��/��������0 ���/������S�R�/���0������

#�.

�URS0��/���00/����� ���S��R/��

" �S��VW

��US���/��

U�/�������0� ���/������S�R�/���0�����R

#�.

�URS0��/���00/����� ���SU��/��

" �S�0VW

�0�S�R�/��

��/�������00 �0/�������/����������

V&

�S0��/���0�/����� �S���/��

X&��-)&P�S�#Y���ZZZS�"-[T�Z.��.,-�YS
\�]̂_��!-P�PS�W-[T��PS�̀]�.

�S00�/��

0/�������R� 0/�������/����������

V&

���/����/����� �0�/��

X&��-)&P�S�#Y���ZZZS�"-[T�Z.��.,-�YS
\�]̂_��!-P�PS�W-[T��PS�$���

�0�/��

�S���/�������R0 ��S���/�����a�b�������

W!c 

��S���/����S���/����� �S���/��

 -.���#�&d�\��-)�,

��S���/��

�/��������� �/������0�/��������0�

!d�

�S��0/���/0���� �S�0�/��

!-[.S�#Y���XS�#�e�S�'�-,e&�-)S�̀]�.

�S�0�/��

'&[������d��



���������	
��
������������

��������������� 

��!"#$%&���'��(�)�*�+��,-�.��/�/�����-,-�.���0

1����23�45 67��89����

:�59�;5�43�<����

=��5�>��?�:�59�:;

1����23�4567��89���� 67��89����8��@5��?�8��A59�53

BCD�6�E��553F��6���9
�5 BGD�H�53��
3�:�4I

1����23�45J�
����K�
���1����

BLD�2
K�5�M�;�
��:�4I

@54�����:;?;5�43N� O��&P�%��Q

�/��������0 �/������0�/��������0�

!R�

�S��0/���/0���� �0�/��

!-T.S�#U���VS�#�W�S�'�-,W&�-)S�$���

�0�/��

0��/��������� �S�X�/�����Y�Z�������

[!\ 

�S0��/���S0��/����� 0��/��

#�&R���T]̂&����_�.���̂

�S�X�/��

@54�����	��
�N X̀a0S�X0/�� �̀S���S���/���̀S��0Sa�0/��

B�D�����4
�5����59��������
��=�9<�@�9

bLcCCCcCCCICCbdefcCdfICC

bLcLgfceCfICC bdefcCdfICC bLcCCCcCCCICCh���3
4��i3
���	��
�N

h���3
4��:�59�	��
�N bLcLgfceCfICC

'&T������R��


















	08.17.2023 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm08.03.2023
	NB-1
	NB-1
	23-17 Local Support Without Financial Commitment

	NB-2
	NB-2
	Coleman Engineering Bid[11987]

	NB-3
	NB-3
	Back-up Documents Paving on Stephenson

	NB-4
	NB-4
	Street Sweeper Agenda Backup Documents

	NB-5
	NB-5
	SEPSD Copie23081007200




